City of Geneva, Illinois

Local Historic District & Landmarks
Property Inventory Survey

GENERAL PROPERTY INFORMATION:

PROPERTY ADDRESS:

230 West State Street

PARCEL IDENTIFICATION NUMBER (PIN):

12-03-414-001

HISTORIC NAME: Geneva Hotel and Shops Addition

COMMON NAME: Unknown

DATE OF CONSTRUCTION: 1926-1927

SIGNIFICANT ALTERATION DATES: 1929 (south addition)

ARCHITECT: Unknown

BUILDER: Unknown

WILSON BROTHERS: [ AUGUST [ OSCAR [1BOTH

ARCHITECTURAL DATA:

ARCHITECTURAL STYLE: Two-Part Commercial Block; Late Classical

OVERALL PLAN SHAPE: Simple, Back Facing Rectangle

LOCAL SIGNIFICANCE RATING:

NUMBER OF STORIES: 3

[ ] significant

FOUNDATION MATERIAL: Not Visible

|z| Contributing

PRIMARY WALL MATERIAL(S): Brick, Stone

|:| Non-Contributing — Built After 1987

|:| Non-Contributing — Reversible Alterations

FRONT PORCH: Commercial Entry

|:| Non-Contributing — Irreversible Alterations

VISIBLE SIDE PORCH: N/A

HISTORIC DISTRICT LOCATION:

ENTRY DOOR(S): Commercial Entry

IE Central Geneva NRHD

WINDOW MATERIAL:

|:| North Geneva NRHD

WINDOW STYLE: Fixed, 8/8, 6 It

|E| Local Geneva HD

PRIMARY ROOF FORM: Flat

|:| Not in HD / Individual Historic Landmark

PRIMARY ROOF MATERIAL: Unknown

NR DISTRICT SIGNIFICANCE RATING:

VISIBLE CHIMNEY: No

|E| Contributing

|:| Non-Contributing

CHIMNEY MATERIAL: N/A

|:| Not Applicable / Not in NR District

OTHER SIGNIFICANT ARCHITECTURAL FEATURES:

HPC ACTION:

|:| Demolition Approved:

Other HPC Action:
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Local Historic District & Landmarks PROPERTY ADDRESS:
Property Inventory Survey

230 West State Street

ADDITIONAL PROPERTY INFORMATION:

BRIEF HISTORICAL DESCRIPTION:

This property was constructed between 1897 and 1905, according to
historic Sanborn Fire Insurance maps. Before then, the site was
vacant land next to the Geneva Hotel, with proposed but never
completed development illustrated in the 1891 Sanborn. In 1905, the
site was listed as a vacant one story building with an enclosed rear
porch. By 1912 it had a commercial use as a news stand and jewelry
store. That commercial use continued for most of the property's
history, including during the period of time that it was related to the
Geneva Hotel.

On July 6, 1923, it was announced that H B Fargo had acquired both
the Geneva Hotel and this property for $53,000. At that time,the
property was occupied by George Ekdahl's store. Fargo planned to
improve or rebuild the property to become a three story hotel at the
corner with two stories of stores at the rear. At this point work on
both buildings had begun to occur in sync, with one Geneva
Republican article in May of that year saying that the buildings were

SOURCES:

Geneva Republican: 30 July 1926, 8 July 1927, 2 August 1929;

GHPC Case Studies; GHM Archives; 2016 Central North Geneva NRHP Update; 1869
Bird's Eye View of Geneva; Sanborn Fire Insurance Maps; Kane County Land
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CONTRIBUTING ACCESSORY STRUCTURES:

AS1 GENERAL DESCRIPTION:

AS2 GENERAL DESCRIPTION:

CONTRIBUTING LANDSCAPE FEATURES:

GENERAL DESCRIPTION:
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	BRIEF HISTORICAL DESCRIPTION: This property was constructed between 1897 and 1905, according to historic Sanborn Fire Insurance maps. Before then, the site was vacant land next to the Geneva Hotel, with proposed but never completed development illustrated in the 1891 Sanborn. In 1905, the site was listed as a vacant one story building with an enclosed rear porch. By 1912 it had a commercial use as a news stand and jewelry store. That commercial use continued for most of the property's history, including during the period of time that it was related to the Geneva Hotel.

On July 6, 1923, it was announced that H B Fargo had acquired both the Geneva Hotel and this property for $53,000. At that time,the property was occupied by George Ekdahl's store. Fargo planned to improve or rebuild the property to become a three story hotel at the corner with two stories of stores at the rear. At this point work on both buildings had begun to occur in sync, with one Geneva Republican article in May of that year saying that the buildings were simultaneously repainted.

By 1924, Oscar Nelson was the owner of the Geneva Hotel and the corner property which still housed the Ekdahl store and bowling lanes. New addition plans proposed 4 shops at the ground level and two upper floors of 8 rooms each; upper floors to be connected to the existing hotel building. It appears that he left most of the work on the buildings to their leasees as he spent much of his time in local and state politics. With Nelson's purchase, Ekdahl moved his store to 311 W State St and later to 13 N Third St, as redevelopment of the corner building was expected.

In October of 1926, the Geneva Republican said, "cement foundations for addition to Hotel Geneva have been completed and work begun on basement walls". This addition replaced the original building at 230 W State St, and was developed as additional commercial space related to the hotel. By 1928, the current neoclassical, three-story building existed on the site. The 1930 Sanborn map describes it in three sections: a drug store on State St, a telegraph section behind, and an additional store behind that.  By 1945, the telegraph section and additional store were both used as offices. The Merra-Lee shop replaced the Betsy Ross Tea Room and Jack Edwards Restaurant at the address of the former drug store in 1941.

In 1929, a new, three story wing was added to the south of the hotel complex. The new wing was expected to be completed by late September 1929, when demolition of the original hotel building was planned to begin with the construction of a new hotel building in its place. The new hotel plans did not materialize due to the Stock market Crash in October 1929 that led to the Great Depression. The building has remained the same since its 1928 construction and continues to have a commercial use. Today, like in 1912, a jewelry store operates at the address.
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